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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of
ICA Pidilite Private Limited

Report on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Ind AS financial statements of ICA Pidilite
Private Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2024,
the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow
Statement and the statement of changes in the Equity for the year then ended and a summary
of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act,2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standard prescribed under section 133 of the Act read
together with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules ,2015, (Ind AS) and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
31" March, 2024, and its profit, total comprehensive income, its cash flows and changes in
the equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Information Other than the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditor’s
Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Management
Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business
Responsibility Report, Corporate, Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does not
include the Standalone Ind AS'ﬁnchiéI statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
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Our opinion on the Standalone Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility
is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the Standalone Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge
obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

[f, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134 (5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Ind AS financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including Other
comprehensive Income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including Ind AS. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of Standalone Ind AS Financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisipns of users taken on the basis of these
standalone And AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks\of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
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those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether
the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the standalone Ind AS financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone Ind AS
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone Ind AS
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone Ind AS financial statements
that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a
reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and
in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. '

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that ma}\ reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguardsi...
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

03]

€))

()

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™) issued by
the Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the
Annexure “A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,
to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31°
March 2024 and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31*" March 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial control over
financial reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the Company has not paid/provided any managerial remuneration under
the provisions of section 197 read with schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013, hence
reporting under section 197 of the Act is not applicable.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its Standalone Ind AS financial statements — Refer Note 36 to the
Standalone Ind AS financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts; as such the questioft of commenting on any material foreseeable
losses thereon does not arise; | 2N
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For KHANNA & PANCHMIA

iii.

iv.

vi.

There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to
the Investor Education and Protection Fund.

(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by
the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity
("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented , that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds have been received by the Company from any person or
entity, including foreign entity ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding ,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether ,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate
Beneficiaries ") or provide any guarantee, security or the 1ike on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of
Rule 11 (e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement.

(a) The Interim Dividends declared and paid by the Company during the year
is in accordance with section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Based on our examination on test basis of accounting software used by the
company for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended 31
March 2024 we are of the opinion that accounting software has feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and same was operated throughout the
year in respect of all relevant transactions recorded in software. Further,
during our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature
being tempered with.

This being first year of maintaining accounts with audit trail reporting
requirement relating to preservation of audit trail as per statutory requirement
for record retention is not applicable for the financial year ended 31% March
2024.

_ CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS/ -

/i/‘

ner

Membershlp No. 38987

. 136041W

Mumbai, 29" April 2024
UDIN # 24038987BKEQNQO7055



Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor's Report

(Referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading of "Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements” of our report of even date)

0

(i)

(iii)

In respect of the Company's Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:

(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and
Equipment and Right-of-use Assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars
of intangible assets.

(b) The Company has a phased program of physical verification of Property, Plant
and Equipment and Right-of-use Assets so to cover all the assets once every
three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of
the Company and the nature of its assets. According to the information and
explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

(c) Based on our audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true
and fair view of the financial statements and according to information and
explanations given by the management, the title deeds of immovable properties
are held in the name of the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment
including Right-of-use Assets and intangible assets during the year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against
the Company as at March 31, 2024 for holding any benami property under
the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and
rules made thereunder

(a) The physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals
by the Management during the year and, in our opinion, the coverage and procedure
of such verification by Management is appropriate. The discrepancies noticed on
physical verification of inventory as compared to book records were not 10% or more
in aggregate for each class of inventory.

(b) During the year, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in
excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate from banks or financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets and the quarterly returns or statements filed by the company
with such Banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of account
of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, during the year, the
Company has neither made any investments in, companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships, and nor granted unsecured loans to other parties. Further,
the Company has not provided any guarantee or security or granted any advances
in the nature of loans. secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties. Hence reporting under clause 3(iii), (iii)(a), (iii)(b),
(iii)(c), (iii)(d), (iii)(e) and (iii)e#) of the Order are not applicable.
' /
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(iv)

™)

(vi)

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
granted any loans, made investment or provided guarantee, which are covered by the
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013. Hence, reporting under
Clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be
deposits from the public. Accordingly, Clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under
section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. We have broadly reviewed the cost
records maintained by the Company pursuant to Companies (Cost records and Audit)
Rules,2014 as amended, prescribed by the Central Government under sub-section(1)
Of Section 148 of the Companies Act,2013, and are of opinion that, prima facie, the
prescribed cost records have been made and maintained. We have, however, not made
a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are
accurate or complete.

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the

(viii)

(ix)

Company examined by us, in our opinion, the Company has generally been regular in
depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Custom duty, Excise duty,
value added tax, cess and other statutory dues as applicable with the appropriate
authorities. There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and
Services Tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income tax, Sales Tax,
Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, Cess and other statutory dues in
arrears as at March 31, 2024 for a period of more than six months from the date they
become payable.

(b) According to information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, in our opinion, there were no dues which have not been
deposited in respect of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above on account of
any dispute except as mentioned below-

Name of Statute Nature of Amountin | Period to which | Forum where
Dues Lakhs the amount dispute is
relates pending
The Customs | Customs Duty 2,444.65 | 2016-17 to 2018- | Cestat
Act, 1962 and Penalty i 19
The GST Act| GST 18.00 | 2020-21 Commissioner
2017 Appeal, GST

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

(a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or
in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

(c). The Company has not__také an}: ‘term loan during the year and there are no




(69)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

outstanding term loans at the beginning of the year and hence, reporting under
clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds
raised on short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for
long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the
Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to
meet the obligations of its subsidiaries. -

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures
performed by us, we report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on
the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.

(a) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the
Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial Public Offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, Clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable.

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence
reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company,
carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and
according to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come
across any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company, noticed or
reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the
Management.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has
been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year.

(¢) According to information and explanations given to us there were no whistle
blower complaints received by the Company during the year.

As the Company is not Nidhi Company, the reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order
is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the
Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013,
where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related
party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by
the applicable accounting standards.

(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

(b)The reports of the Inte,m%l‘Auditor for the period under audit have been

considered by us.
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(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during
the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors
or persons connected with him and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies
Act, 2013 are not applicable.

(a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(xvi)(a)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not conducted non-banking financial / housing finance
activities during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(xvi)(b) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the
regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the reporting under
Clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d)  In our opinion, there is no Core Investment Company within the Group (as
defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and
accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash loss during the current financial year or in the
immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the Statutory Auditors of the Company during the

(xix)

(xx)

year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to
believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date
of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts
up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities fallingdue within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(a) There is no unspent amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
requiring a transfer to a fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act 2013 in
compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Companies
Act 2013. Accordingly, repogﬁngévdggclause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable.
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(b) There is no unspent amount in respect of ongoing projects of CSR under sub-
section (5) of Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013 requiring a transfer to a special
account in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (6) of Section 135 of the

Companies Act 2013. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not
applicable.

For KHANNA & PANCHMIA -
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
i eg)No. 136041W

Devend—r&hanna Az
Partner ;
Membership No. 38987

Mumbai, 29" April 2024

UDIN # 24038987BKEQNO7055



Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditor's Report

(Referred to in Paragraph 2(f) under the heading of "Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements’ of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of ICA Pidilite
Private Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidepce we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial

reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only
in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of information and explanations given to us, the Company has, in
all materials respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting
and such financial controls over financial reporting are operating effectively as at March 31,
2024 based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India.

For KHANNA & PANCHMIA
CHARTERED ACCOUNTAI}[T»T"' '

FirmRep. No. 136041W  /

Deven Khanna
Partner

Membership No. 38987
Mumbai, 29" April 2024

UDIN # 24038987BKEQNO7055



ICA PIDILITE PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2024
{Amount in Rs. lacs)

For the year For the year
Particulars ended ded
Note No. 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
Audited Audited

INCOME
Revenue from Operations 25 39,054.90 35,215.89
Other Income 26 681.68 313.56
Total Income 39,736.58 35,529.45
EXPENSES
Cost of Materials Consumed 27 16,437.75 17,338.01
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade (Traded goods) 28 3,078.35 1,915.34
Changes in inventories of Finished Goods, 29
Work-in-Progress and Stock-in-Transit 174380 85930
Employee Benefits Expense 30 4,633.26 3,679.61
Finance Costs 31 98.42 64.49
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 32 2,501.43 2,319.12
Other Expenses 33 6,334.14 5,374.76
Total Expenses 34,157.73 31,050.63
Profit / (Loss) before Exceptional Iltems and Tax 5,578.85 4,478.83
(Add) / Less : Exceptional Items (net) 34 - 111.56
Profit / (Loss) before Tax 5,578.85 4,367.27
Tax Expense
Current Tax 1,616.26 200.57
Deferred Tax (221.20) 900.17
Net Tax expense 1,395.06 1,100.74
Profit/ (Loss) for the year 4,183.79 3,266.53
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Actuarial Gains/(Losses) 35 (103.64) (28.21)
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit

or loss 35 26.09 7.10
Total Other Comprehensive Income (77.56) {21.11)
Total Comprehensive Income 4,106.24 3,245.41
Earnings per share
Basic (Rs.) 38 62.80 49.03
Diluted (Rs.) 38 62.80 49.03
Face Value of Share (Rs) 10.00 10.00

Significant Accounting Policies 1to2

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements 31062

In terms of our Report attached
For Khanna & Panchmia
Chartered Accountants -~ T
N :136041}W
/

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

evendra Khanna\| / BHARAT PURI
Partner \ Director

Membership No. 38987, -, O - ONF3566

Charmi Kanojia
Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai
Date : 29th April 2024



ICA| Pidilite

ICA PIDILITE PRIVATE LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2024

(Amount in Rs. lacs)

As at As at
Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
Note No. Audited Audited
ASSETS
Non Current Assets
{a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3 8,539.09 8,284.44
{b)  Rightof Use of Assets 3a 991.40 835.80
(c) Capital Work-In-Progress 4 15.84 82.64
(d) Goodwill 5 207.87 207.87
(e}  Other Intangible Assets 6 3,814.77 5,342.49
(f) Financial Assets
(i) Others 7 209.26 169.29
{8}  Income Tax Assets (net) 8 - 38.50
(h) Other Non current Non financial Assets 9 138.82 23.88
Total Non Current Assets 13,917.06 14,984.90
Current Assets
(a) Inventories 10 4,336.69 5,109.15
(b) Financial Assets
m Investments 11 7,319.48 7.,372.48
(i) Trade Receivables 12 10,318.43 8,074.84
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 13 785.16 677.35
(iv) Loans 14 112.82 79.56
(c) Other Current Assets 15 953.72 855.67
Total Current Assets 23,826.31 22,169.04
TOTAL ASSETS 37,743.37 37,153.94
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(a)  Equity Share Capital 16 666.19 666.19
(b) Other Equity 17 23,620.85 25,776.81
Total Equity 24,287.04 26,443.00
LIABILITIES
Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Lease Liabilities 669.45 627.97
(b)  Deferred Tax Liabilities (net) 18 840.06 1,087.35
(c) Provisions 19 442.51 283.05
Total Non Current Liabilities 1,952.02 1,998.37
Current Liabilities
(a)  Financial Liabilities
(i) Trade Payables
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 20 1,650.05 1,557.56
Total outstanding dues of others 20 2,167.28 1,825.50
(ii) Lease Liabilities 410.80 253.34
(i) Others 21 6,546.97 4,688.75
(b)  Other Current Liabilities 22 606.80 317.09
(c) Provisions 23 81.58 70.34
(d}  Current Tax Liabilities (net) 24 40.82 -
Total Current Liabilities 11,504.31 8,712.57
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 37,743.37 37,153.94
Corporate Information & Significant Accounting Policles. 102
See accompanying notes forming part of the financial
statements. 3to 62

Interms of our Report attached

For Khanna & Panchmla~ © FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BO.&RQ\OF DIRECTORS

evendra Kt BHARAT PURI
Partner NN Director irektor
; N 2 oy G
Membership No. 38987, RED AC pwr O FLSCE 0 m’\' -0 Lo Zoqg)
A
Place: Mumbai Charmi Kanojia

Date : 29th April 2024 Company Secretary



ICA PIDILITE PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st March 2024

(Amount in Rs. lacs)

A] Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Interest income
Net gain arising on financial assets designated at FVTPL
Allowance for Doubtful Debts and Advances (net)
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense
Provision for Employee Benefits
Operating profits before Working Capital changes

Movements in Working Capital:
(Increase)/Decrease in Operating Assets
Trade Receivables

Inventories

Current Loans

Other Non-Current Financial Assets

Other Current Non Financial Assets
Increase/(Decrease) in Operating Liabilities
Trade Payables

Other Current Financial Liabilities

Other Current Non Financial Liabilities
Cash generated from Operations

Taxes paid (net of refunds)
Net Cash generated from Operating Activities [A]

—_

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Payments for purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment, Other

Intangible Assets & Capital Work-In-Progress
Sales/(Purchase) in Investments

Interest received

Net cash used in Investing Activities [B]

C] Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Payment of Lease Liabilities
Dividends paid on Equity Shares
Interest paid
Net cash (used in)/ generatad from Financing Activities [C]

Net increase / (decreass) in Cash and Cash Equivalents [A+B+C]

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year

Netincrease / (decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Notes:

For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2024]  31st March 2023
5,578.85 4,367.27
98.42 64.49
(3.69) (25.31)
(156.01) (167.22)
(34.93) 28.95
2,501.43 2,319.12
67.07 59.65
8,051.14 6,646.95
(2,208.66) (1,565.81)
772.46 (142.46)
(33.28) (39.11)
(39.97) (30.09)
(98.06) (275.31)
434.28 211.53
1,880.79 1,368.02
289.71 187.31
9,048.42 6,361.03
(1,536.94) {215.54)
7,511.48 6,145.50
(988.97) (493.39)
209.01 (6,884.32)
3.69 25.31
(776.27) (7,352.40)
(350.09) (238.92)
(6,262.20) (466.33)
(15.10) (11.00)
(6,627.39) (716.25)
107.82 (1,923.16)
677.35 2,600.50
785.16 677.35
107.82 (1,923.16)

The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS 7) -

Statement of Cash Flows.

In terms of our report attached

For Khanna & Panchmia
Chartered Accountants 2N
Firm Reg.N :133041w; N

ﬂ‘ - :"
even KhBI‘II‘IB’ “ fl

Partner
Membership No. 389&‘?\ )

Place: Mumbai
Date : 29th April 2024

D~ 02} 23S 66

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE{BOARD OF DIRECT

TR Atas A

RABHAKAR JAIN
Director

Hin' - —

Sharmi Kanojia
Company Secretary
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ICA PIDILITE PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of financial statemarits

1.0

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

2,31

Corporate information

IGA Piditite Private Limited (Refered to as "The company” )is engaged in the business of Weodooatings & Woodfinishes. The
Company is a Private Limitfed company incorpofatad and domicited in India-and having its régistered offlce situated at 403 7 404,
4th flooy, Satellite Silver Building, Near Marol Metro Station, Aridheri Kurla Road, Andheri {East), Mumbai - 400089, The company
is.a-Joint vanture between Pidilite Industries Ltd (PIL Group) and indusstria Chimica Adritica Spa {ICA), italy; wherein PIL group.is
holding 50% of it share hotding and-45% of share holding is held by {CA, ltaly, In May 20:18_, the company has doquired the Wudfin
Business from Pidilite industrlies Lid,

_'Signifi'ca'nt Accounting Palicies

Basis of preparation and presentation
The finaricial statérments of the company have been prepéred inaceordancewith the indian Accounting Stendards-(Ind AS)
prescribed underSection 133 of the Companies Act; 2013 (Act') read with Rule 3 ofthe Companies (indiah Accounting

Stondards) Rules, 2015 and the Companies.{indian Accounting Standards) Amendrmient Rules, 2016,

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost conventior exceptfoi tha fallowing iterns which are
megsured as -
a. Certain Financial Asseis/ Liabilities - at Fair value,

Thie financlal statgmerits are presentsd bn indian Rupees {INR) and ali values are-rounded tothe nearest Lacs, except otherwise.
indicoted:

Revernue recognition

Revenueis recogrised when the company petformance obligation is satisfied. The-primary peiformance obligation is satisfied
upon-shipmant or dispatch of produets to the customers; which is alsowhen the control of products is transferred. Revenue.is
recognisad torthe extentthat itis probable thatihe eohiomic behefits will flow to the Companyand therevenue can be reliably
measured. Revenoe.is measured atthe Fair Value of the consideration recélved or receivable, net of returns, rebates and
disgcaounts.

Saie of goods

Revenug from sale of goods is recognised when all mgnnficant risk and rawards’ ofownarshlp ofthe goods are transferred.to the
buyer, which ganeraily coincides W|th dispaich of goods: Itexcludes GST. Itis measured st fdlrvalue of consideration recewed oF
receivable, net of returns, rebates and discounts,

Leasing
The company attheincegtion of & contratt, assesses whether the contract is o lease or not lease, A contract is, or contains, a

lease if the contract conveys the fight 1o control the use of an identified dsset for a tima in‘exehange for a considaration,

Company as Léssce

The Company'silease asset classes. primar'iiy cansist of leases for buildings, The Company assesses whether a contract contains
a lease, at mcept:on of a.contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract convays the right to controt the use of an
identified assetfora period sftimen exchange fof cansideration. Té assesswhethér a contract convéys ihe right to controlthe
useofan identified asset, the Company assesses whether: {i} the.contract involves the use of an identified gsset, {ii) the
Company has substantizity 86 of the sconamic bienefits from use of the asset through the period ot the lease and (i) the
Company has thé right 1o direct the use of the-asset.

At the date of cominencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU") and a carresponding lease
tiabitity for-all i2ase arrangements in which it s 4 lessee, exceptior l@ases with g term of twelve months or tess (short-tefm
teases) and low.value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lesse paymients as an

wperating expense.on a straight-liné basgis overthe terim ofthe (sase,



ICA PIDILITE-PRIVATE LIMITED

2.4

2.5

2:5.1

2.5.2

Right-of-use assets ara-depreciated from the corimencement date on a straight-lice basis overthe shorter of the lease tefm dnd
useful life of the underlying asset, Right-of-use assets are evaluated tor recoverahility whenever avents or changes in
circumstances indicate that their carrying amolnts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment tgsting, the:
recoverable amount {i.e.the higher-of the falf value less cost to selt and the value-in-use) is determined onan in_dividuai asset
basis unless the agset does notgenerate ¢a shflows that are-largéty independent of thosé from other asssts. In-such cases, the
recoverable amount is determinad for the Cash Gengrating'Unit {CGU) to which the.asset bélongs.

Thelease liability is iniiial'ly maasdrad atamortized tost atthe present yalue of the futlire lease payments. The lease payments
aré discountad using the interest rate implicitin the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the.incrementat borrowing ratesin
the-country of domicile of these leases: Lease-labitities areé remeasured with-a corresponding adjustment to the related Right-of-

Use assetif the Comipany changes its assessmant it whether itwill exercise an extension or a termination.option.

Lease lisbility and BOU asset havebedn separately preserited in the Balance-Sheet and legse payments haveheen classified as
financing activity under cash flows.

Foreign currencies

in preparing thé financiat staterments of the.company, fransactions- in currencles otherthan the company's, functionat GUITENCY
(toreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing atthe dstes, of the transactions. Attheend of'gach
reporting period, monstary tems.(including financiat assets and liabitlties) denominated in foreign currencies are retransiated at

the rdtes prevailing at that date. Gainé or losses arising from these transtations arerecognised in the statement of Profit and Loss.

TJaxation ,
Income tax expense represents the sum.of the taxguently payable and deferred tax, Significant judgemants areinvolvedin

estimating budgeted profits for tha taloulation of advance tax snd deferred {ax, and determining provision for income-taxes and
uncartain tax positions.

Current tax
The tax currently payable is basec on ‘taxable pront for the year, Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tak’ &s reported inthe

statement of profitand loss bacause ot iterns of income ot Expenséthaf are taxable or detiuctipie [n atheryears and items that
‘are never taxable or deductible. The Company's currént tax is calelated using sppticabletax rates thet have heen enacted or

substantively enacted by the-end of the reparting period and the provisions of théincome Tax Act, 1961 and dther tax laws, as
annlicable,

Deferred tax

Peferred taxis recognisad ontemporary difterefices betweef the ¢arrying amournts of assets and. habmtles inthe fmancnal
statements and the corresponumgtax Bases used in the complitation of taxable profit; Deferred tax liabilities:are generaliy
recognised for all taxablé tempoerary différences. Defefred tix assets-are. ganerally recognised foralt deductible temporary
differences to the extent that itis probable that taxable profits will be available against _whach those deductible teraparary
diffarences can be utilised.

Deferred tax Labilities are recogniséd for taxable temporary differences, it is probable that thetemporary.difference willnot
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred iax-asse_ts:arié.ing_fr‘om deductibie temporary diffefences associated with such
investments and interests ars.only recoghised to the extent thatit is probabie that there will be sufficlent taxabie protits agatnst

which to Ltilise the benefits of the temparary differences and they arg éxpectad toreverse in the foresgeabls future.
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2.5.3

2.6

2.6.1

2.6.2

The.carrying amount of deferred tax assets Is reviewed at the end of each-reportinig pericd-and rediced to the extent thatitis no
toriger probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to atlow all orpart of the assetto be reécovered.

Deferred tax (iabilitigs arid-assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to-apply in the pariod in which the-liability Is
settted orthe asset reallsed, based on fax rates (and tax laws) that have béahn snacted or substantively enacted bythe end of the
reponring period.

The measurement of deferréd tax inbilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner inwhich
the Compary expects, atihe end of the reporting period, to recover or setile the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
Gurrent and deferred tax forthe year

Currantand deferred tax are recognisad in profitorloss, except when they relate to itams thatarérecognised in other

comprehensiveincame or directly in‘equity, in which.case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in-other
comprehensive Income or directly in edquity respectively.

Propirty, plant and equipment
Praperty, plant and equipmesntacquired separately _ _
Freehold land is stated 8t cost and not.depreciated. Buildings, plant and machinsry, vehicles, furniture and office equipmants.are

staisd atcostiess.accumulated dep're_ciatidn' and-accumulated Impalrment losses, Hany.

Gost of an' item of property, plant and equinmant comiprises its purchiase price, including import duties:and nan-refundabla
purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any dgirectly atiributable cost of bringingthe itern to its working

.c‘qndiﬁon torits intended use and estirated costs of 'dismanﬂi_n_gand removingthe item.an_d-restoringthesi_te on which itis

located,

Properties in the courss of construction for production, supply or administrative purposes are carfied atcost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Cost of such sélf-gonstiucted item includes professional fees. Such properties are classified o the appropriate
categories of property; ptant and equipment when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the-
sarme basis as other property assets, commences when the sssets are ready for their intended use.

An iterri 'of property, plant and equipment is dergcognised upoh disposal or wheh no future ecoriomic benefits are expected to

atise from the continved use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising oni the disposal or retirérnentof an Heri of property, plantand
equipment isrecognised in profit or loss in the vear of occurrence;

‘Capital Work-in-progress

Properties in the:course of construction for production, supply or administrative purposes arécarfied at cost, tess any recognised

- impairment loss. Costincludes professional fees and, Tor quatifying asssts, borrowing costs capitatised in accordandewith the’

Company’s accounting policy. Such properties sre classified and capitalised 1o0'the appropriate categories.of Property, Plam and

Equipmeit when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of thegg assets, onthesame basis as other property

assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.
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2.8.3

2.7

2.7.9

2.7.2

2.7.3

Depreciatiop

Dapreciation is provided so as towrite'off the cost of assets {other than ffeehold land and Capital work in progress) iess'thelr
rosigual values overthelr usefullives, using the stralght-ting method. The estimated usefuliives, residual vatués and depreciation-
method arg reviewed at the end of each reporiing petiod, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted foron a
prospective basis.

Based on the technical evaluation, the Company astimates.useful lives-of items of praperty, plant anc eguipment which.are
different from the useful life prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013, Estimated useful lives of the property, plant
and-entinmeant are as follows:

Type of Assets Useful Life

Bulldings 30 years

Plant & Machinery 1-20 Years.

Vehicles 8-10 Years’

Furpiture & Fixtures 5-10 Years

Office Equipments ' 3-8 Years

Intangibie Assets

Intangible assets acquired ina business combination

intangible assets acquired in @ business combination and recognised separately from goodwill arereporied at cost 'l_ess
agournulated amortisation & ancurnuylated impairment iosses, if any. Amortisation’]s rgcognisad on as_t_raighvli_n_g._basi_s_oyar_‘;heir:
estimated usefil lives. The estimated useful lite ahd amortisation method are fevieéwed at the énd of each reporting period, with
the etféct of any changes in estimate being acetunted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite Useful lives that
are acquired separately-are carried at cost less accumulated impaitment (osses. )
‘Useful lives of intangiblé assets

Estimated usefullives of the intangible assets are as follows:

Type of Assets ' Useful Life-

Trade Mark: 10 Years

Comptter Software : 3-6 Years

Technology Transfer 10 Years

Business Right in the Form of Technical Knowledge for Product Usage 10 Years

Nan-Campete Fees 10Years

Commercial knowhow 10 Years

Commerical Rightin the Form of Marksting Exclusivity 10 Years

Goodwill

Gobdwill is rheasured as the excess of the.sum of the consideration transterred over the netof acquisition-date amounts of the
ictitifiable assets acauired and the liabilities.assumed. Goodwill arising on an-agquisition of a business is carried at costas
established at the date of acquisition of the business tess accumuiated impalrmeént losses, ifany.

For the purpuses of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to éach-otthe Company’s cash-generating units {or groups of cash-
generating units) thatls expected to-benefit fram the synargiesof the combingtion..A cash generating unitto which goodwill has
heen.allocated is tested forimpalrment annually, of m‘b‘refrcquent{y U\'{rhen there {s an indination that the.unit miay Be impaired. If
the recuverab[e arnount ofthe cash- genaratmgun!t is less than jts carrymg amgdunt, the impairment toss is allocated firsttg
reduce the carrying amount of any gootwill allocsted to theuriit and thento the other assets of the Unit pro-ratabased on the
carrying amount of each assets in the upit. Any impairmenrit ioss for.gaadwill is recognised directly in Statement of Profit and Loss.
An impairment toss fecegnised for goodwitlis notreversed in subsgquent perlods.
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2.7.4 lm_pa'lr_ment.of tangible and intangible assets other'than-goodwill

2.7.5

2.8

2.9

Atthe end of each reporting period, the Compeny reviews the garrying-amounts of its tangible and intapgibte assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an Impairment loss. if any such indication exists, the recoveraple
amount of the asset iz estiniated in ofder to determiné the extent of the impairment loss (if nyl. When it is nat possible to.
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amaunt of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs: Whien a réasonable and cbnsistent basis of allocation can be identiﬁe_d, corporate assets-are.
aiso allocated to individual cash-generating units; or otheiwise they are aliocated to the smallest group of cash-generating-units
tor which a reasonable-and consistent sllocation basis can be identified,

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and Intangible aésets not yet avallable for use are tested for impairment at {aast
annuaily, and whenever thére is an indication that the asset may be Im_palr.e_d. intangible asseis with indefinite useful lives are
tested for impairment annustly at the cash gernerating unit level, “The assessment of indafinite useful life is reviewed annualty-te
determine whether the indefinite life continues to De supportabie, If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to-finite is-made
ort 3 prospective basis.

Racoverable amount is the higher of fatr value less costs of dispiosal and valuein use,

if the recoverable amount of an asset {or cash-generating unit) is estimated to ba less than its carrying ariount, the carrying

amount of the asset{or tash generafing unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. A impairment loss fs recoghised immediately

i profit or loss.. .

intangible assets acquired separately

‘Intangible assets.with ﬁhi__fc’e useful lives that are acquired separately ars carrigd at cost l€ss ascumulated amortisaton and.

accumulated impalrmentiosses, Ampriisation is recoghised on-a straight-ling basis guer-their'estimated useful lives. The

.astimated tsefut e and amortisation method-arereviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the'effect of any changes in

estimate being acoounted for on a prospective basis.

intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are.cartied t costiess accumulated mpairment losses.

Inveritories
Inventories are valued at lower of cost.and net realisable value. Cost of inventories is. determined on weighted average basis.

Gost for this purpdse Includes cost of direct materisls, direct labourand appropriate sharé of overheatls.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less all estimated gosts of
completion and estimated cosis necessary ta make the sale,

Obsuoléte, defective, unserviceable.and siow /non-moving stocks aré duly provided for and valuec at net reatisable vaie.

Provisicns
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present otiligation (legal ar constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Compény will be required to settt¢ the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
abligation.

Provisions {excluding retirement benefits & Earit cutGampensation) are not discounted to theirpresent vaijue and are determined

based on the best estimate required to settle the chligation at the balante sheet date, taking into asccount the risks and-
uncertainties sureounding the obligation, These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted 10 reflect the current best

estimatas, - )

Contingent labilities are not recognlsed hut disclosed i the Notes ta the Financial Statements.

Cantingent asseis are not recognised but disclosed in the MNotes to the Financial Statements, where an inflow .of gronomic

benafits is probabie.
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2.10

2.10.1

2.10.2

2.10.3

2.10.4

2.10.5

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the company becames a party to the contractiral provisions of the
instruments. )

Financial assets and-financial liabitities are inftially measured at fair value, Transaction costs that are directly aftributable to the
acquisition or i55ue of financlat assets and financig! Uabilities {oihter than financial-assets. and financial Gabilities at fair value
through profit or {gss)are adted to'or deducted fram the value of the financial assets orfinanclal liabilities, as appropriate,.on
initiat recognition. Transaction costs directly attrtbutable to the acguisition of financiat assets or financial tabilities at fairvalue
thraugh profit or loss arerecegnised immediately in profit-or_ioss‘

Finangiail assets
All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured.in their entirety at either amortised cost ot falr value, depending.on
the classification of the financlal assets,

Debtinstruments that meet condftions based on purpose of holdfng-as_s_et_s and contractualterms of Instrument-arg
subsequently measured at amortised cost ugingeffective interest method, All other financial assets are measured at fair value,

Income is racoghised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments othér than thosefinanclal assets classified as at FVTPL.
intergst income s racognlsed in profit orloss and is included in the "Otherincome” tine item.

Impairment-of financial assets

The Company applies expected credit loss modet for recognizZing. impairment loss on financial assets like trade receivables,
financial assets measured at amortised cost, l€ase receivables and othir contractual rights to receive cash of other finangial
assets. Expectod credit ioss es are weighted average of credit losses with the respective:risks.of default ocourring as-the weights.
Credit luss is thedifferance between all contragtual vash fluws that are due to the Companyin actordance with the contract.and
ail the cash flows thatthe Company skpests to receive, discournited at originat eftective rate of Interast.

For Trade feceivables,.the Company measures toss silowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. The
Company compuies expected creditloss allowance based on a provision matrix which takes inte account histerical credit Loss
experienceand adjusted forforward-tooking information,

Financial Liahilities
All finanicigt liabilites are measured at amertised costusing effective interest method at the end of subseguent reporting periods.
interest expense {sinciuded irthe Finance costs line item.

Derecognition of financial assets and liahilities.
The Company deracignises a financial asset when the contractual rights 10 thie cash flows from the asset explire, or when it
transfers the financlal asset and substantially all the risks.and rewards of owhnership of the asset to-angther party.

Detivative financial instruments

The Cormpany enters into Toteign exchange Torward contracts to manage its exposure to forelgh exchange rate risks. Derivatives.
are initislly recognised at f3ir vatug at thie date the defivative contrants ate entered into anc are subséquently remeasured to their
fair vaie at the end of each reporting parfod. The resutting galn or toss is recognisad in protit or loss immediately.
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2.12.3

Cash and cash-eguivalents {for purposes of Cash Flow Statement}
Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of cash flow sfatement comprise cash at bank, cash in hand and short- term
investments net of bank overdrafts with an original maturity of three months or less.

Cash Flow'Statement

Cashlows aré reported using the-indirect method, whereby profit / loss beforetax for the period is adjusted for the effects of
trangactions of non-cash nature, any defetrals oracgruals of past or Ruwre operating cash r_ece‘ip'ts-or payments. Cash Flows
from operating, investing and financingactivities ofthe Company are segregated. ' '
Cashand Cash Equivalents fof the purpose of Cash Flow Stalement comprise of cash at bank, cash in hand and shart- term
denosits with an origingt maturitvof three manths oriess. as reduced by bank overdrafts.

Emplayee benefits.
Employee benefits incidds Provident Fund, Employee State Insurance Ssheme, Gratuity Fund, Compensated Absences,
Employee Medical Insurance and Anniversary Awards.

Defined contribution pians

The Company’s contribution to Provident Fund and Employee State \nsursnce Schame.are considered as- defined contribution
pians anid are charged as an expense based on the.amount of contribution required to be made and when services are randered
bv the emplovees.

Defined benefit plans’
For defined benefit-plans [n the fgrm'of Gratuity Fund, the cosi of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit

method, with actuarialvaluations being carrfed out at each batance sheet date, Re-measurement, comprising.actuarial gains and
tosses and-the returm on plan assets {excluding net interest} is reflécted immediately in the Balance Sheet with acharge or ¢redit
recognised in Other’ comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Re-measurement récognised in’ ather
comprehensive Incoma is reflected imfhediately in rétaingd earnings arid is not, reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost is
recognised immediately for both vested and the nan-vested portion. The retiremant benefit'obligation recognised in the Balance

‘Sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation, as reduced by the fair value of scheme assets: Any asset

resulting from this. calcutation is limited. taking Into. acceun the present value ot available refunds and redyctons in future
contiitiutions tothe schemes.

Short term and stherlong termemptoyee benefits

Aligbilityis recegnised for benetits aceruingto employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual teaveand sick leavein the
pariod _tﬁ_e r_eiata.d service i rendgred atthe-undiscounted-amountof the benefits expected to be paid inexcharige for that
service.

Liabilities recognised in respect 6f short-term wmployee beneiits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the henefits
gxpected to be paid in exchange for the related service,

Liabilities recognised {n respect of other long-term employae benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated future:
cash cuttlows expected to-be mada by the Corripany in réspect of sefvices provided byemployees up to the reporting date.,
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Earnings per Share

The Gampany presents basicand diluted earnings per share:("EPS"} data for its equity shares. Basic EPS Is calculated by-dividi‘ng

the profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number ofequity shares
outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is'detaimined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable o egquity shareholders and the
waighted-average number of equity shares outstanding.

Criticat accounting judgerients and lkey sources of estimation uncertainty

Tha preparation of the Company’sfinancial statéments réguires management to make judgements, estimates and _assumptiqns
that affect the application of accouniing policies, regortgd amounts of assets, liabilities, income and eXpenses, and
accompanying disclosures, and the-disclosure of pontingent liabilities. Application of accounting. policies that require critical
atcountng estimates involving complex and subijective judgements and the use of assimptions in these-financial statements.
The estimates and associated -assumptions: are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered 10 be
relevant. Actuai results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumpiions. are reviewed on an angc:}r]g_..basis, The effect of change in an accounting gstimate is.
recognised prospectively in the perfod of change, if the change affects that periad only or in the period of the-change and future
neriods if the.change affects both cufrent and future periods.

Employae related provisions

The costs of long term and shoit term employee benetits are estimated using.assumptions by the management. These
assumptions include rate of increase in compensation levels, dispount rates, expected rate-of return on agsets and-atirition
rates.
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3a. Right of use assets {Amountin Rs. lacs)
Cartying amounts of As at 315t March 2024 As-at 31st March 2023
Other Building. 976.11 834.65
Plant & equipment 15.29 115
TQTAL ' 991.40° 835.80 |
Cost (Gross block} QOther Building Plant & equiprment Total
{Balance at March 31, 2022 998.90 1214 1,091.03
Other Additions 549.03 - 549.03
Other Baletions - - -
Balance at March 31, 2023 1,547.92 1214 1,560.06
Other Additions 448.40 17.31 465.71
Other Detetions - - -
Balaice at March 31,2024 1,996.32 29.44 | 2,025.77
Accumulated amortisation and impairment Other Building: Planit & equipment Tatal
Satance at March 31, 2022 507.85 8.24 516.09
Other Additions 205.43 2.74 208.17
Onher Detetions - - -
Balance atMarch 31, 2023 71328 10.98 724.35
Qther Additions 306.94 . 3.17 310,71
Balancé at March 31, 2024 1,020.22 14.15 1,034.37
1Carrying. amaunt (Net Block) Other Building Plant &aquipment Total
Balance at March 33,2022 491.05 3.89 454,95
Other Additions 549,03 - 549.03
Other Delations - - -
Amortisation expense 205.43 2.74 208,17
Balance at March 31, 2023 834.65 1.1% 835.80
Other Additions 448,40 17.31 465.71
Other Detetions 306.94 3.17 -319.11
Balance at March 31, 2024 976.11 15.28 '991.40
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Notesg forming pait of financial statements

4. Capital Worlcin Progress

As at 31st March'2024 {Amountin Rs. lacs)
) ' ' Amount in CWiPfor a period of
CWIP {including G C a Less tha More than 3
VIP(including Group Gompany) es? n. 1-Zyears 2-3 years i th Total
1 year YEars
Projects in progress 15.84 - - - 15.84
Projects temporarily suspended “ - “ - .
As at 31stMarch'2023
) _ . Amount in CWIP for a period of
| i omp Lesst . Morethan 3
CWIP (including Group Company) gs; han 1-2 years 2-3years 4] 1 Total
1 year - years

Projects in progress 82.64 - - 82.64
Projects temnporarily suspended - - - - -
4a. Capital Warkin Progress
As at31st March'2024
Particulars Mar-24- Ma r.-'2'3
Opening Balance 82.64 28,62
Additions during the year 660.81 292.62
Cogitallsed during the year 727,71 ‘286.60

15.84. 82.64

Closing Balance
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IA PIDILITE PRIVATE LILUTED
Notas forming part of financtat statements

‘7 Othar Finaneial Assets-Non Curdént

{Ametintin Rs, lags)

As at Asat
-31.03.2024 31.3,2023
Unsecufed, considered good '
Seeutity deposils 209,28 169,29
TOTAL 269,26 169,209
8 [neame Tax Assots (notf Nan Gurrent
Asat Asat
31,03.2024 31.3:2023
Advance ncorme Ta (NG of Provisions)-MNen Gurrent - 38.50
TOTAL - 138,50
9. Othor Nan current Non financial Assets
’ ’ Az.at A5 at
31.03.2024 31.3.2023
Advanea 1o Capital Vendors 138.82 23.88
’ TOTAL 138,82 23,89
16 laventorios {Jit.tower of cost and net realizebic value)
Asat As Bt
31.03.2024 31.3.2023
Raw Matarial- & Pocking Material* 2,276.58 1,974.65
siockin Traga 1,022.11 844.04
Finished Goods 1,048.01 2,180.47
FOTAL 4,335,689 5,102.15
¢ Includes Gonds in transit.
11 Firanclal Assois « Investinents - Currant
Ast31.3.2024 As.abat.,2.2024
) Qly. AmtinLlogs gty Amtinlacs
Current Investments {at falr vaiue)
nvestments In Mutual funds
Linits af (10T Prudentiat Oversight Fund Ditect Plan Giowth (binfts e - 4Z.2110 i3
Unitd of-Aditya Biria-aBSL Crsit 1Y 444 Jun23 Indes Fund Dif Growlh - - 33,42,748 252,04
Unlss ab-HEBC- HSBO 'Uit'r_{:'shnr: tern Duration tarid-Dir Growth 44,254 555,93 54,6833 8098
{inits of-1CICT Prudental-Liguid Fund- DP Growth - - 2,686,794 EBB.G2
Units at-Kotak-Kotak Equity Arbitraga Fundg - Ditect Pian - Growih 39,50,454 1,43%.42 39,50,454 1,335.41
UnltE-af-Nippon indin-ULTRA SHORT DURATION FUND - HRECT GR.PLAN - - 33,039 1,23G.41
Units ol-3Bl-Arbitrage Dpp.F‘u nd- D et Olan-Growsn ' 21,753,304 FiLa 11,892,810 360.46
Linits at-581-Gvhimght Fund D gravah ' - - 5,633 205,58
Linlts of-8ELSB) Magnum Littra Short O F O Growth - . 11,728 604.90
Units of-Tata-Ligquid Fund Dirsct plat-Growth " - 10,100 368.70
iinits 0% Totartlitra Short Yern -Direct plan-Growth - - 57,94,556 V2o.07
Unirs 0! $81 Liquld funa-Birsct Growth 5,402 204,17 - -
Units of Kotak Band shars teem growth dirget pian 3,986,999 204,55 . .
Uinits of Adilya BiaABSL Crisit 18K ABA Jun24 Indéx Fund:0i Growtn 48,43,394. 527,27 - .
Linite of Adilya Biiria ABSL. Banking & PSU Debit Fund-Gr.Birect 1,428,021 507.5% - -
Lipite of Aditya Bira ABSE Money Manager Fund Gr-Direct 2,867,834 912.75 - -
Units of Tats Morey Market-Qirect drowth $7.336 75716 . -
Unilts ot Tota Arblirsge Fund-Direct nlan Growth 33,51,075 460.18 . .
Units of Ketak Low durallon-Direct growth 21,860 720.55 - -
Linits of DEP Saving Fund-Dif Growth 6,47,752 320,57 - -
“TOTAL 731548 7,372.48
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12 Trade Receivables {fAamount in s, lees)
As at Asat
31.03.3024 31.3.2023
Unsectred, considerad good 10,318.43. B.074.84
Considered Doubtiul 280.38 24546
1059841 8,320,930
Légs: Adowances for Expecled Crenit Logs 260,308 245,45
TAOTAL 10,318.43 8,074.84

The'average tredit period on salew of goolis ks 80 days. No ingefest is chazgen on trade receivadles.

Ageing af Trade Recievables
A% ur3Ist Mareh!2024

Qutstanding for follewing parieds fram duedate of payment

Less.th_zm & B months.1 ryore then

Particulars : 12 2-3 yog| Total

. manths year rZyunis years 3 yoars. ot
i} Undiaplsted Trade receivablés - considered good 40,294.32 24,12 - - - 10,518.43
tily Undisputed Trate Raceivables —consid ered.daubitut “20.98. 43,97 21.6% 87 95,27
(i} Dlsputed Trade Receivables considened doubiful - - - 32.38 182,73 185.10
“Total” 10,294.32 45.09 43.97 54.03. 16140 10.598.81

As at 31st Mareh'2023
~Gutstanding tar tollowing petlads fram due date of paymerit
. Lassthan's & months- re th
Particulars 1 T-2years 2-3 years mote than Tatal
maonths yoar 3 yedrs
it Undispuiod Trade recevabias - considercd good &043.37 3147 - - : 8,074.84.
{tis Undlsputsd Trane Recaivabies - considéred doublft - 16.60 22.81 IFATY 80.59 -137.08
{6} Disputad Trade Raceivables considorad doubtul. - - . - 117V 596,68 108.99.
Total ’ ’ 8,043.37 A7.97 2281 25.88 177.27 8,320.30
13 Gash and Cash Egquivalents
As at As gt
31.03,2024 31,3.2023
Casb on Mard 0.02 .14
Hatances witn banks
i Fiked Doposily _ 125,03 428.78°
n Corent Accouit 660,12 2g1.48
TOTAL 785.16 67756
Gash and cash eguivalents as above 785.16 B77.3%
Baighoe g5 Per cosh fow sTHlemant 78516 677.35

Cashy Sratiy Hmitwith IGHCT Rank Lid far Hs 25 Crares hypotheeatod apainst stuck and ook debts.

14 Loans
As at As at
31.03.2024 31.3.2022
Unsecured
Loans io Slaff 112.82 TU5EG
Considerad Doubiil 13.75 a7
_ 126.57 83.73
Less: Atfowandes for Expéctad Cradit Loss 13.35 4.17_
' ' TOTAL 112.82 79,56
45 Dther Current Assets (Non Ei Tal)
hs-at As at31.3.2024
31.03.2024 - -
Unsecured, consideréd good
Pigpaid Expenses 100.52 A5
Bnlonces with Govarnmaent Adshanitles £91.45 _BH0.26
Advanea ko Supptiers/others 161,75 16040

TOTAL 953,72 855.67
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1cA PIDILITE FRIVATE LIMITED.
Notes farming part.of financial statements

i6 .Equfty Share Capital

{4 in Ry, la ts)
As at Asat
31,09,2024 31.03.2023
Autharlsed Capitals
46,00,000 Equlty Shares of R 10 each  (90,00,000 Exuity sthares £ Bs. 10 Eachj 900.00 20000
) TOTAL 500.00 800,00
Issued. Subscribed and Pa vp Ganital:
66,61,820 Equity Shares of Rs10 caeh, julty paid-up,  [B6,61,920 Equity shares of Rs 10 each Julty pais up) 666,19 §66.19.
ToTAlL 666.19 6E6.19
4. Reconcitiation ofthe ber at esiand ding at the beginning and atthe et of the reperting period
s at Asat
31.03.2023 31.0%.2023.
NumBar ot Rs umEBer o Ay
Sharse * Sharng -
Equity Sharas .
Shares nulstanding at the beginning of the year 66,61,820 66,19 45,651,920 TRE]
Sharns outstanding atthe end ol theyear EE,61,520 E56.19 BE, 61,920 E66.19

. Tarms/Rights attached to Equity Shares
Thi Company has anly one slass of equity shares baving & per valte of 104 por snane, Eaghhcider of equily sharesis entiibet to.one vote par sharas.

¢. Details of sharehiolders holding mote thian 5% sharesinthe Campany:
As a1 3T1.03.2029° As at 31032023
Mo, 61 Shares % of Holding  No.of Shares % nf Holding
-held Hold
Pieitfita industries iid T 32,793,121 49.13% 32,738,121 A49.13%
Industris Chimie Adritica Spa 28,57 854 A5.00% 29,597,864 A5.00%
d. No equity sharesware allotted without payrngnt being recelved in cash.
e Detaits of changes qur_';ng_lhe','-'e arin shirehoiding of the compality,
' % ot Holding
Promoter Name HNo.ot Shares % change.during the yaar
Picite Wndusires Lid ARTINRTY 45.13% D.00%
Eeviegl Industries Lig 57,836 0.87% 0.00%"
Igaptria Chimica Adrtica Spa 25,97,864 45,00% 0.00%
‘Pratli Moierd:a Mihea 2,33,046 5.00% 0.005%
Pidilite incustees Lenlien jointly with A N Parakh 1 0.00% .
Pidllive Industydes Limited joimly with & B Pargkt 1 ‘0,00% .
Fidilie nduatsies Limited jolntly with B £ Mahta 1 £1.00%: -
17 Othar Exquiity
Asat Asat
11.03.2024 31.03.2025
_Securitias Premium Account
Euiance a5 pertast inancial stalements 22,301.95 23.387.75
Closing Balgnee 22,387.75 22.387.75.
Caopltal Redomption Reserves
Ralance ag per lagt inancial statementa 64,37 54.37
Cilgsing Balance 64.37 6437
Retained Eamlngs _ _
‘Batapcess pat last flnancial stetaments 324,68 545.61
‘Add;  Profit{ {Logs} forthe year 4,106.24 2,24 541
Less: ‘Dividend Pald [8,262.20) (466,23
Ciasliig Balanen 1,188.73 3,324,689

TOTAL 23.620.85 24,776.83
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18 Detarred Tax Liohilltios fnet) fAmount in Rs. {acs)
Asat Agat
51.03,2024 31.03,2023.
Derorrad Tax Liabiitics fnet) 840,06 1,087 45
TOTAL 84006 ‘1,087,385
19 Provisjons
Azat As at
31.03.2024 31.03.2023
Pravislon for Employee Benefits {Hefor Note 39)
Gratulty 304.63 169.47
Compensated absences 137,68 43,63
FOTAL 44251 283,08
20 Trode Payahies
hs'at As ot
31,03.2024 31.03,2023
Total Outstarding ties to Micrd Emterprises & Small Ensarprises {Rofer Note 41 1,550.05 1.857.56
Total Ouistanding dues to gredliors other than Micte Enterprises & Sinalt Eptarprises, 216728 ‘1,625.80
TOTAL 481754 A,383.06

Agalng oftrade payables
As-at 3lst Morch'2024

Faniculars

Lessthan {

Outstanding for tellowing parods from due date of pryment

‘Marpthan 3

1-Zycars 2-3yearsa’ Total
. yeor yHArE
{i) Undisputed dues - total autitanding dues of micfn cridipeses and small entergrses 1,550.0% - - - 1,650.05
{1} Undizpltad dues- total outstanding dies of creditors other tis micra epernses sralt )
epteimise 2,145.19 22.09 - . 2,167.28
Totat 4,795.24 22,09 - - 3.817.34
As 81313t Margh'2023
Outstanding for fellowing perisds frem dus date 6f payment .
Particutars tessthan1 -2 years 2-3yenrs. Mereihand “Total
. year yoars
it} Undtispuiad duas - total sutsianding dues of micro emerprises and small entorprises. 1,657.56 - - - 1,557.56
{il} Undispuiad dues - totat autsta ndin_é dures of eroditors other than micro enterprises serlalt
enterpesk 174599 28.5% - - 1.R25.50
Totat 3,353.55 29:51 - - 3,363.05
21 Dther Gurrert Fl ials Liakilities
Az at Asat
31.03.2024 91.03.2023
Tradef Svedrity Depasit received | 29214 203,02
Llablities 1o Expenses ‘6,194.07 4,418,867
Employae relatd Tabiitkdd 49,10 41.23
Payahles on pursfiase o lixed assels Z.18 24.75
Other Current Linmiiling 3.48 0.07
' ' ' TOTAL 5,546.97 4,688.75
22, Other Current Nen Fi iad Liabilities
Azt Asat
31,03,2024 a1,05.3023
Advanoe biam custamers 28.88 1_6,?0_
Stztutory Remlfanoes™ _ 576.92 200,39,
TOTAL 60680 317.09
“*ingles TDS & GS?
23 Current Proviilons
Asat As at
11.03.2024 31,03,2023
Provision far Employe Bennlits fRafar Note 39} ]
Gratuisy o 40.27 3438
Dombensated ahsénces 4151 35.97
TOTAL B1.58 10.34
24 Currom Tax Liabllitles {net)
Hsat As ot
31.03.2024 31.03.2023
Provislen for Tax {netaf _A’dun'ri coTax Rs. 1575.44 Lpest 4n.82 -
ST
TGTAL 40,82 -




ICA PiDILITE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part.of financial statements.

25

Revenué From Operations

{Amountin Rs. lacs)

For the year Farthe year
ended ended
31.03.2024 -31.03.2023
Revenue From Dperations
Sale of Products
Finisted Goods 34,875.86 31,378.55
Traded Goods’ 4,137.24 - 3,799.95
TOTAL (A) 39,013.10 35,178.51
Dthier Operating Revenue
Scrap Sales _ 41.80 37.39
TOTAL (B}, 41,80 37.39
Revenue from operations- (A+B}
TOTAL 39,054.50 35,215.89
26 Otherincome
Far the year For the yeay
ender ended
31.03.2024 31.03.2023
Interest on:
Bank Deposit 3.69 25,31
Net Gaifs on Sate of :
Curient Investments: a07.73 41.04
Other Non-Operating Incomae;
Sales of Power Generated 19.88 15,16
Conilssion Receivet 15.03 20.74
Net gain/(loss) ariging an financial nssets / Liabilities designated as st FVTPL 156.01 167.22-
Miscelianeous income- ' 67.38 28.73
Woarehousing Storage.incoms 11.95 15.36
TOTAL 681.68 313.56
27 Cost of Materials Consumed
For the year Fortheyear
ended ended
31.03.2024 31.03.2023
Inventary at the beginning of the year 1,974.65 1,472.89
Add Purchases ™ 16,739.67 17,839.77
' 18,714.32 18;312.66
Less :inventory at the énd of the.year = 2,276:58 41,974.65
TOTAL 16,437.75 17,338.01

* Includes Goods in transit




ICA PIDILITE PRIVATE LIMITED

Detaits of Materials Corsurned

{Amourit in Rs. lacs}

Forthe year Forthe year
ended entded
31.03.2024 31.03.2023
Chemicals 16,437.75 17,338.01
TOTAL 16;437.76 17,338:01
28 Details of Purchdse of Stock in Trade
For the year For the year
ended anded
31.03.2D24 31.03.2023
Chemicals 3,078.35 1,915.34
TOTAL 3,078.35 1,915.34
29. Change in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work in Progress and. Stock in Trade
For the year For the year
ended ended
31.03,2024 31.03.2023
Inventories at end of the year
Stock-in-Trade 1,022.11 '944.03
Finished Goods 1,038.01 2,190.47
(A) 2,060.12 3,134.50
inventories at beginningof the year
Stock-in-Trade 844.03 1,60_5.36
Finished Goods 2,120.47 1,888.44
(B} 3,134.50 3,483.80
{B)-{4) 1,074.38 359.30
TOTAL 1,074.38 '359.30
30 Employee Benifits Expense
‘Far the year For the'year
ended ended
31.03.2024 31.03.2023
Sataries and Wages 4,317.29 3,432.22
Contribution to Provident and Gther Funds. 191.57 143.83
Gratuity ) 52.23 45.84
Staff Welfare Expenses 72.17 57.71
TOTAL 4,633.26 3,679.61
31 Finance Costs i
Forthe year For the year
ended ended
.31.03.2024 31.03.2023
Interest expense on:
Iriterest on {gdse liabilities 83.32 53.49
Others 15.10 11.00
TOTAL 88.42 64.49




iCA PIDILITE PRIVATE LIMITED

32 Depreciation and Amortization Expense:

{Amaunt in Rs. lacs)

For the'year For the year
ended endad
31.03.2024 31.03.2023
Depraciation on Tangible Assets {Refer Note 3} 646.71 £557.51
Amortization of intangible Assets {Refer Note 5} 1,544.62 1,583.43
Depreciation on right of use assels (Refer note 3a} 310,11 208,17
TOTAL 2,501.43 2,319.12
33 Other Expenses
For the year Farthe year-
ended ended
31.03.2024 -31.03.2023
Clearing, Forwardingand Qctrol Duty 781.86 7653.82
Rent 36.80 125.93
‘Rates and Taxes 69.57 9.59
insirance 112.68 78.83
License fees 0.27 0.32
Repairs & Maintenance
Buildings 9.40 1613
Machinery 46.44. 44,95
Others{Repairs) 28,16 25.78
Dirsctors' Fees 5.70 3.79-
Advertisément and Publicity 3,166.68 2,555.77
Legal, Proféssional and Consultancy fees 93.50 138.60
Donations - 9.78
Cornmunication Expenses §2.68 78.76.
Printingand Stationely 18.28 20.56
Traveliing and Convevance Experises 744.07 559.11
Bad Debts 5.76. 28.71
Provision for Dolibtfet Debts- 42,63 (27.8M
Processing and Packing Charges 474.97 429,27
Payments to Auditor (Refer Note42} 12.67 11.25
Cuorporate Sociat Responsibility Expenses {Refer Note 47) 44.30 18.10
Net gain/{loss} arising an financial assets/Liabilities designated as at FVTPL 9,40 -
Netlosson foreign currericy transactions and transtation 35.92 4585
Miscellaneous expenses 187,12 182.24
Contract Expenses 32123 '241.65
' TOTAL 6,334.14 5,374.76
34 OtherExceptionalitems
Forthe year For the-year
ended ended
31.03,2024 31.03.2023
‘OtherExceptionatl (tem {Net) - 111.56
TOTAL - 111.56
35 Other Comprehensive Income.
For the year For the year-
ended ended
31.03.2024 31.03.2023
Actuarial [Gainsi/tosses 103.64 28
Tax effect on Other Comprehensive income - {25.09) {7.10}
TOTAL ' 77.56 2111




1GA RIQILITE PRIVATE LIMITED

ICAIPIdilite]

Moty 1) pEst ot fi; Lstal
3 G gont Lish|iting and €
[Amosnt inRs. lacs}
Asat . Asm
S1atdarch, 2024 3ist March, 2023
AL Contingant Babilltles pal provided for;
Y Gudranicos gan by Benks ig fovor of Custemz Authgritles B46.54 BS54
For glearing gonds undar pruvisiohal sssessmant.
2, Claims against the Dompany ot acknawiedgs 2s Debts Rtk
. Vst Bridy Clai gisp by the Compody relates o o 833.21 83351
. Syt DUty eiaim dtsouied by the Company selated to Vaitallan 509.18 509,98
«. agditionol fne dnd penalty Fupatud an Esmgany,drdctor and CEQ 1.992.26 3102268
o Crdor Passet By GUT degsrment G008 -
B] CaprriliweaTs: .
121 Estirnatod dinount of et ol L7 10 b exetite G fof tha s Listun of froparty, plant andt sodlsraont and pot provided fer 266.67 £4 B8
i) Othor Somr Hore G % 'f‘. Ing {.eases jRotar Kate 54} HiL NIL

37 Sapment intormailon

The Chmpany has determined ite cperating sagmant as Saillng of ¥

ALY

L Dasn qntnainfurmaucri repuctad fo the ol operating dm:isionmaker {CU [Mi6, Mana glng Director of

pr
o Cornpanyd inaccordanss vwith the recuirmmants af indian Accauating Steprs:d 1 o - ’Qpefuﬁng Segmant Runnnmy notified under the Companies (noian Acwummgsmmams; Rutes, 2015,

38 Earnihgs PetShare FERS)

The tellowing rofiecta the Profit and Share data used in the Basic dnd Olivted EPS sompiatailons:

Azt Ad gt
A1stMarch, 2024 3751 Maoreh, 2023
Basic nad Dhuted:
Total Qpeiations farihe yoar { peried
Probil tor the yissr . ERITS 3,267
Wirighled avernge nimbar of ooty shoses for calaylating baslc and diluted E85 BE,61,520 66 L2
Faet walip nas siveny ’ oo, @
EBrning e shate [Beslc and Diuled] &7.80 LLEx
245 Helated Pady Transaclions
Lisl of Aotated Parties.
[iy Heling Company
Mdiiite industrles ikt
W © iy haidng 51
trucli suia Chitiea .-.t:fim,n Spa F{isf]
walspor {indla] Coatlog Cotprration Pyt Ld
liiif.  Fallow Subsldiacy
Tengk Preglita incia Pyvibig
iV} Kay Manosgerment Parggnnol )
5 Shef Aharat Pisel Deetar
b, ShelProbnakerdain Directar
€. Shrl Andiee Paticeia Rirnttor
©. Segie fogdewsh Sardesal Ditecrer
e Shri Gaotarn Kkurana Directar
1. Shri Nagosh Datel Addional Dicectar
B Shat Pater Inseph ippolity Arditional Birector
Trargaciling Wit felotes Barties are ax tollows ¢ {Amounk ir: Rs. l:'ssl'
i X 20232024 20222023
‘Natura of Trapsaclion . Valspar {India} Valspar {indi'_:'_l_
F Pdifitd B Tenax Pidlite Gaatlng Remuneration Fidliita Ca Tonox Pidliite india qérn_li'r_sg
1o Dltociors itd i indio Pyt Lid | Corporatipn Pt} ta Directoss L slitd s Put, Ltd Caorporption
Ltd Pyt Lid
sxlos AWorks Contract Incame/Gthers B » -
2 [[Excluding Tanes) ML 7613.63 1583 3351 (08 ML 7.426.56 20,74 INEF 3119
b IPurehasns and Cifor Serdcas,
Futengen of Materiats/SAP o .
AMEIDTRers NIL 164.93 1,950.%7 NIL 408,85 HIk 106.52 281896 N_IL._ HIL
Sendcen/Reimbursemont ML 11.95 - lf-!ll. 145 ML 16.68 - HIL il
SItlng Fess 5.70 - HIL - A7 - ML NiL
¢ |Qutatanuing Balerives:
+ Puhrark Int_:{\ldmg'auv;an':‘.es . KIL 147728 - v 24.88 i 1,18%.45 - 1330 NIL
- Tteaitos - NIk {145.20) [GELA - {481,717 rilf, {76013 {B75.946} - ML
- et Bacnivabief[Payabio] NIL 1,332,008 {BS0.56) - [456:29] wll, IRELFT) (37598 1340 kil
4 loivigenis Paid NiL 207674 281789 NiL L ML 2291 209.85 NiL: k.
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MDILITE PRIVATE LIMITED

Employee Benefits,

Gen

eralgescriptian of defined penefit plans <

Gratuity
The Company Gpirates a gratuity plan Covering qualitying employees. Thiy beriefit pavable is the greater of the amount calculated as per the
Paymem of Gratulty Act or the Company scheme applicable tothe employes. The benefitvests upon complation of flve years of contlnupus
service and onoevested itis payabie o employees on retlfément oren termination of employment. In gase of death whilé in service, the

gratuity is payaile irrespective of vesting,
-Acuarial galns and losses inrespect of definkd benefit ptans are fecognised in the Financial staigéments through other comprehensive
incame.

inte

restrisk

Adgcreasein the band interest rate will insrease the plan labitity.

Longevity risk
Tre presentvatue of dofined benefit plan lability 18 Calculated by réfefence 1o 1he best estimate ofthe motaliy of plad participants oth
during and after thelr employment. An Increasa in the life expacianoy of iha pian participants willincrease the man's dability.

Salary risk
Thae presant value of {he deéfined henefit plan Uability is calculated by refarence to'the future salaries of plan paricipants, As such, anincrease

inth

e salary of the nlan participanta wiil increase thi plan’s ablity.

Defined banefit plans - as peractuarial valuation

{Amount inRs. lacs).

iParticuiars J1st March 2024 31st March:2021
Change in the present vatus of defined benefit okligation
1 |Present value of defined benaflt gbligation.ar the beginping of the year 223.78° 168,54
2 ICurrentservice cost 36:98 34,07
" 3 |interest costhnoome 15.25 1137
4 [Remeasurements igains)f losses inclided in Q]
Actuariat [gains)/ Wbsses arising from changes in defipgraphic assumplion - {10.39)
Actuarial {gains)/ lesses arising from changes in financial assumaotion a0 3.34
Actyarial (Ealns) losties ansing from changes nexperience adjustrhent 101.24 35.26°
5 |PastService cost - -
6 {Benefits paid [34.74) {18.82)
7 |Presentvalueof defined benefit obligation ot the end of theyear 344.91 223.78
Met Assetf(Liability] recognised in the Balance Shest 45 at -
i [Present vatue. of detined benafit obligation.as at 818t March’ 344,91 223.78
2 Wair valué of plan assets asat 315t March - -
3iSurplusHDeficlt) 344.91 223,78
alCurrent portionof the above 40.27 34.38
5|N@én current portion of the above 304.63 189.41 |
Actuariat assumptions
1|Discount rate 7,19% 7.38%

2|Attritian raig

Upto'Service 5 years -
28,34%, Batween
Service 5 years to 10

Upta Service 5years

28.34%, Between

years 18.3B%, theroafter {Service 5 yearsto10
3.92% yoars 18.35%,
thereafter
3.124%
31S:lary Escatation Naxt year 12%, Next 2 years 10%.
o theraaftor 7.5% thareafter 7:5%
Expense recagnised in the Statement of Profit and Loss for tho year-ended
TiCument service cost 36.98 3407
2[Interest cost on beaefit obligation (Nety 15.25 11.77
3 Tatal expenses Included in employee benefits expense 52,23 45.84
Receognised in other comprehenpsive Income far the year
1{Actuarial {gainsi losses.arising from shanges indemagraphic assimption - {10.29)
2]Actuarial (gainsy lnsses adsing from changes in financlal assumption 2:40 3.34
I Actiarisl [pains) losses arsing from chariges in expefience adjustment 101.24 35.26
4iReturn on plan assey . -
5|Recopnised in other cormnprehensive income 103.64 28,21

The gstimate of future salary increases, considered in actuarial vatuation, takes account of inftation, seniority, promotion and otherreievarit

tactors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.
The Company's-contribution to Providént Fund and Employees State instirance Scheéme aggregating Rs.193.57/- {Lacsyhas been récognised

Ireth

e Statement of Profit and Luss under the head Employet Benelits Expense.

Actuarial gaing and loages In respect of defined penefit plansaré recogmsed in the FiHanciat statgémentsthrough other comprehensive

neo

me.



ICA PIOILITE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notos farming part of financial statements,

47 Disclosures required under Section 22 of Micre, Smatl and Medium Enterprise Davelopment Act, 2006
{Armount in Rs. lacs)
Forthe yearended for the year ended
J1st March, 2024 31st Marck, 2023
{iY Principal amount remalning enpaid to.any SME supplter as ot {hé end of the-accaunting year ,650.05 1.557.56
(i} Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to:any supplier os at the-end of the accounting year - -
{3y The-amaunt of IRterest paid alohg with the ampums of the payment radeto the suppiier beyond the sppalnted day
tiv) The-amount of interest due and payabie for theyear - -
{v} The smount of interest acerued and remaining unpald at the end.of the scocounting yéar -
Vi) The amount of further interest due and payeble even In'the: suceeeding year, until such-date whep the:meres.dues as - -
abave are-agtually paid
TOTAL . 1,650.05 1,657.58
The abowve information regarding dues to Micro and Small Enterprises has been determined-to the extent such parties have heen identified on the basis of Information
coltected with-the Company, This has been reticd upon by the auditers.
42 Details of Payments to Auditor
o For the year.anded For the yaar ended
3ist March, 2024 3ist March, 2023
Audil fees 6.00 500
TaxAudit 1.50 1.50
Othar Sarvices:
Transter Pricing Audit Fees G.50 0.50
Limited Roviaw 3.00 3.00
Others ) 1.67 0.25

12.67 11.25




GA PIDILITE PAIVATE LIMITED

43

Finanelalln strument

Tapital Managemont

Tha Cormpany dotig Aot fave ey debtas op 3Tst March 2024

Categores of financial instruments
{Amount [n Rs, Laes) -

31st March 2024 31st March 2023

Financiatassnts
Maasured ntFair Valus thraugh Probit or Less

Forward {uraign akchange contracts
Magsurnd-al amortisad cost

Gash antf hank balapces
Othes tinancial aasets

78He
22,087.42

§77:35
2060003

Finrancial lighilitles
Measured at Fasr Valug Whrough Prodlt or Loss - -
Matslteg at Amnvtzed cost 18,971:11 B,258.20

Fi Tal rish gement dbj

Liguidity.dsk managemant
Limperiel ity risic rafars 1o the risk that ke Companywill pnoaunter difllellty IV medting its tingncial ghligation os they foil due. The Comgany's finnneislpsssts aro highar than babittias as on

313t March 2024

-Crodll sk mnnagemenl

cmd,‘ rigk mfnts to risk thax the Lounteemarly wiIl debouit or its comtachdat abikzations resUling in Hnanciol isss b the Company. The Company has repuled cusiomes dis ta which cradit

'nsk ia very[uss.

Marketrisk
The Campriny's activitles expose it primarly te the tinancial sk of changes i forolgh eurroncy exchanga taes, Tha Company coters into tarwasd {oreidn B s 10 manage its

erpostis ta laraigh vurreney risk at imposts.

=anign eutreney sensitlvity analysis

prary trapsaetlons dan; d - foralgh eur las; quently, expe ta erchange rate Tugtuations arise.
The carrfing amodnid of the Compeny's forsign :wmncy dapaminated onptary assels and menakeary lisnilltizs atibe end of 1he reporling period arg estollows.

1her-_ YT

Particulars FC value in Faroign Currancy Fe.value In INR Logs.
d1stMarch 2024 315t March 2023 3151 March 2024 315t March 2023

Amounts payable In fareign curréncy oh aoiatint af the following! ] ]
EUR 9,46,771 10,57,952 054,58 940,52
ugh 37,756 70200 1147 grdi
The Companiie mainly exposed I the EUR,
The fefiowing mb[a etois the Cnmpany‘s snnsl.tmtytn 22% lnprgade and d sgainih the rel t !‘urezgn purfeagies. 2% is the-sensitivity rate usod when reporting foreign currency
jisk internaily fa key managen pett 108 g T 1 ‘s assessment ol 1ha ransannbly shig o} vin foroign exchiange rates. The sorlsnl\nty analysls includes only

pitstanding torslgr currancy danominalad m une:arynams o ndjusta ther .mr:s.m]un At the perlud ang lor 2% chnngs in forgign currancy Foles.

EUR/ISD impact {Rs.in Lacs)
31st Mursh 2024 | 315 Marsi 7023

{eripent on profit ar logs lor the year 17.72 | -19.97




ICA PIDILITE PRIVATE LIMITED JiCA| Pidilits

{i} This is moingy attibutable 1w ihe Brphsie ta o ]
I manngsment's opinton, Ihe sepsitivity anatyds (s unfepragentative of the
weposure during the year.

at the End af the feporting parlnd.
svarant foreige gshdngs tisk tiecause thic axposiirs af the gnd of the reparting period does not raflest the

Fait value of the Company’s fin anelatagsets and fin anctal bobllities thetarcmeasured ot fair vaina an a recuring Hasls
Boms ot ihe Gompany's fimang als are inangred.of tair value vl the end of gech reporing paviae. The foiiowing teble ghve s Infarmation about hew thia feif values ot
thigse ftgmekal aesirs nog determined fin panieulsr, the valation echnigie(s) and inpols Lsed).

Fair value.ad at valuation tochniguals)

Firianctal @ssets / financial liabilftios Falt vatue hoirarchy

and key inpulfs

A1/0372024 3140342023 Vinputts)
Varlous Bsted Tunds faji | Vanous listdd tunds felr [Lesal 1 Quited bld pricoa in

THyESEmEnt in Mutuai Funds vilue af fs, ¥318ace  jvalue oY Hs. ¥372Lacs. aekives. markat

Fait value of the Company's finaniial assets and fihaneial i bilides that are not mensured at fair valug (but fair valoe discinsutes aro regquired)

Exgapt B3 Hetaied in tha Tollowing table, the ditacts considar that the corying amotinis'of tinancial tssets-and | in} Habititee rasognised i the Teancial statemonts pppros their
faiz wobuas. ’
| in As, Lags)
315t March 2024 315t March 2023

Particulars Garrying Fair valug Carylng amount Fairvalue
{Financlal assets

Finuncial assdts caled bt Amprilsiad Coét ) )
Hewentadlng. 4,336,589 4,238,69 5,108.15 510016
T¢ato Reowivitine 10,215.43 10,218.41 #,0674.84° B,074.84
Cash and cush enirralants 78516 785,16 &77:35 67735
toons 112.82 112:82 7558 79.56

dihate fan current Assets). 204.26 209,28 13_&29 155,29
Total 15,762.37 15,762.37 14.110.18 14,110.18
Financlal Uabltities

Finangial ilabilities neid atamirisby gost - o
Othar Finaaciél Lisbitities 6,546.87 6,546.97 468875, 4,68B.75
OtherGurrent Lidbillics jStatutery Remiitanca) §06.80 6008.80 M0 37.09
Eremyininfis, 81.58 | H1.58 70,34 054
Total 7,235.35 7,216,358 567618 5.076,18]




ICA PIDILITE PRIVATE LIMITED

Note 44 : Leases

impact of adoption of Ind AS 116 onthe statenient of profit and loss ¢

{Amount in Rs, Lacs})

For the year
Parti¢ulars ended
_ March 31, 2024
Interest o lease Habilities {Refer Note 31} 83.32
Depreciation of Right-of-use assets (Refer Note 32} 310.11
|incame onaccount of Modification impact -
|Dreferred taxicredit] {10.21)
Impact onthe statement of profit and loss for the peridd 382.52
|Expanses relatid fo short term lease incUrred during the year 36.80 |
More than 5 ]
As at 3tst March 2024 Lessthan i year 1-5 years Years Total Garrying Amount
410,80 807.81 - 1,218.62, 1,080:.25.

Lease Liabitity (Undiscounted}
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45  Taxes

1 Deferrad Tox

a8 2023-24
Deferred tax assets/{tiabilities) in rolation w: {Amount in Rs. Lacs)

Opening Balance Recognised in Closing balance
Profit and-Loss ) i

Froperty. Plant and Equipment (517.87) {39.99) (557.86)
intangibte Assets (712.02) 235.86 (476.18)
Right of uze of Assets {210.35) {39.16) {’245}'."52)
Others 221.81 ‘5007 271.08.
Pravision for Employee Benefits B2.94 42.96 131.50
Cartied forward Busingss Lossés - - -
Aliowanes for doubtful debly 6178 10.73 72.51
FVIPL Financial Assets {44.67) {39.26) {83:93)
Total §1,112,38) 221.20 {a91.18}
Taxon OCI| 25.03 26.09 §51.12
Total. {1,0R7.35) 247.29 {BAD.06)

b 2022-23
Dafarred tax dssets/{abilitles) in relation for

L, Recognisedin .
Opening Balance Prafitand Ld’és Closing balance

Property, Plant and Equipment {458.59) {59.28} {517:87}
intangible Assets {799.05} 87.08 (712.02)
Right of use of Assets (220.37) 10.02 © 210,38
Others: 130.30 81,51 221.81
Brovision for Employee Benefits 66.83 22,11 B88.94
Carried forward Business Lusses 1,003.92 {1,003.82) -
Allowangse for doubtful dabts 69.06 {7.29) 61.78
FYTPL Firiancial Assets. {4.30) {40.36) {44.67)
Tetal {212.21) {900.17) {1,712.38B)
TaxcnOCI 17,93 7.8 28.03-
Total {154.28) {893.07) {1,087:35}

2 ingoeme Tax
a Incometak recognised in profit or loss Year

As at31s5t March

As at 31st March

2024 2023
Curfent tax
in raspectof the current year 1,616.26 200,87
Totat 1,615.26 200.57
Daferredtax
I raspect of the current year {z21.20) 80017
Total ' (221.20) 900.17
Total income tax expense recognised in the statement.ot Proftt and Loss 1,355.06 1,100.24

b The incoma tax expense for the year can be reconciled te the accounting |

profit as follows:.

Profit before tax
Income tax rate (%)
Incometax expenses.

Effpét of expenses thatare not deductible in determining taxabla profit
Others '

Income tax expense recognised in profit orloss

As gt 31stMaych | As at31stMarch
2024 2023

5,5678.85 4,367.27
28.17% 25.17%

1,404.20 1,088.24

14.95 10.37

{24.10} {8.87)

1,395.06 1.700.74
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Eventafter reporting period
Mo such'eventis to report.

Corporate Social Responsibility

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a Company, meeting the applicanility threshold, needs to spend at least 2% of its average net
prefit for the immedlately preceding thrée financial years on corporate sodial reséonsibllity (GSR) activities. The areas for CSRactivities are
eradication of hunger snd mainutritian, promoting education, ait and dulture, healthears, destitute care gnd rebabiiitation, environmerit
sustainability. disaster relief and ruraldevelopment projects. A CSR committee has been formed by the Company as‘per the Act, The funds
wera primatiy allocated to 8 corgusant utilized through the year oh these activities which are spacified in Séhecule VIl 6f the Companies Act,
2013,

A5 at31.03.2024 As.a131.03.2023
a.amount reguired o be speng by the Company during the year 44.30 18.10
b.@mountaf axpenditure incurrad - 44.30° 18,10
c:total of previous years gain - -
ghredson for shortfall ‘NA MA

Thére ore no:cases of any undisciosed income In the financial staternents.

A3 periheterms of working capital sanctinhed by the hank, the company has submitted the books debts antd stock statement on monthly

 Basis 1o Barik. Furiner the book debits and stogk statements submitted tothe bank ate in agreement with the books of accounts and there are

no déscrepinsies in thee same.

Thie company has ngt advanced or toafied er invésted funds (either Borrowed tinds or share prémium grany other sources of Kind of funds)te
any othee personis} or enfitylies), inctuding foreign entities {Imlermediaries) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing-or otherwise)
that the Intermediary: '

- directly or indirectly lend or invest inother persons or entitles identified in any manner whatsoever by or

oy behalf of the company {ulﬁmate Beneficiaries) or

- provide-any guarantee, secutity ot the like to 6f on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

The.company hag not recelved any fund from any person{s) or antitylies}, including foreign entities (Funding Party] with the understanding
{whethar racorded in wiitlng or othenwise) that the company shall
- girectly or indirectly tend of thvestin other. parsens of entities iden{iﬁed.inar}y manner whatsoaver by or

on behalf of the Funding Party (Uitimate Beneficlaries) or
- drovide any guarantée, security or the iike on behalf of the Uitimate Beneficiapes.

Thiere are g delays in registrations of any charges or satisfactions with Registrar of Cormpanies.

The company fas not raded o invested in crypto curreney orvirtual currengy during the curentyearand previnusyesr.

The company ha§ not efitered any transactions (n companies that were struck off undérthe relevent sections of the Gompanies Act 2013.
The company has obtainéd working capltat limitfrom the bank, however the Company has nat utiized the sameé during the year,

The company has notgiven any loans and advancé ta Promoters, Difectars, KMPs:or Related parties,

No.proceedings have been initiated-arpending against the company for fhoiding any-benamt 'pmp_erty under the Benarmt Transactions{ Act,.
1988 450t 1988 the R!.ikl'as made thereunder.

Compaiyis not belng declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financiatinstitution or other lender.
Previous period's figures are regrouped to rmake them comparable with thode of current peried, wheregver appligable.

The company has proposed Buyback of equity shares 548,120 nps. & Rs.430/- and meeting of huyback committee is held on 29th
March'2024 .

Approval af financiat statements _ o
Trefinancizl statementswere appravad for isue by the board of'dlrgetosds on 28th ApnL2024.
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62 KeyFinanclal Ratios

As atMarch AsatMarch

Ratios Numerator Denominator 2024 2023 % Change
‘& CurrentRatio Current Assets Current Liabiliiies 207 -2.54 -18.61% 1
b Debt Equity Ratio TotalDebts Total Equity (00, 0.00 6.00%
¢ Dabtservice coverage ratic EBITDA intereston borrowings - 7817 09982 -23.69% 2
d -Return on squityratio. PAT Average Total Equity 16.54%. 13.81%: 26.62% 3
e Inventory turnover ratio COGS Avarage Inventory 4,38. 3,89 11,985
. Trade recievable turnover
f ratio, Sales of products Average Trade racievabilas. 425 482 -11.89%
Trade payables turnover ratio COGS Average trade payables 5.72 5:98 -4,43%
i+ Net capital turnoverratio . Working Capj;_a;'(CurrentAssets- 3147 2.62 21.11% 4
’ i Sales of products Cutrgnt Liabilitias), ) i T i
| Netprofitatio Profit Before tax (PBY) Sales.of progucts 14.28% 12:40% 15.19% 3
i Retuin oncapitalemployed  Profit before.interest 22,58% 16.10% 40.36% 3
' and tax {PBIT} Average Capital emplayad
%k Return on Mutual Fund Income dufingthe  Tima weighted average of 8.47% 6.81% 24.30% 3
year investreénts : :

1- On account offncraase-i'n currant liabilities
2- O accotint ot increzse in Interest Expenses.
.3- Onaccourit of ingresse in profit.

4- on account ofincrease in SALES of products




